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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Lozier House is a Dutch Colonial type made of native
red sandstone built around 1775; Cornelius Lozier bought
Lot # 10 of Ramapo Tract in 177L. The "L" shaped red sandstone
and white clapboard house had eleven hand hewad and pegged
timbers. The original brick oven is still in the cellgr.
In the windows there is a narrow lower sash and a simple sun -
burst fanlite. The small wing and Uable roof were added
around 1825. There is a Greek Revival type frieze on the small
wing.

The Lozier Mill was erected originally on the south
side of the house, In 1826 a new mill was constructed by
Abraham Van Riper on the north side of the house., This mill
is oblong shape made of sandstone with iron ties and the
clapboard is painted grey. This building has four stories
#ith a Mansard roof and Mansard type dormer windows in the
roof. The mill has been extensively altered and the roof
was added around 1870,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Lozier property was initially owned by Nicholas Lozier
when he moved into the Hackensack vicinity about 1697. Grand-
son Johannes Lozier inherited the. land on the West Hackensack River ,
and he built the original house as well as the mill across
the street. On Erskine's map of the Ramapo Tract, Cornelius
Lozier bought.Lot # 10 on September 1, 177h. H e devised the
farm to his son, John. One of the executors of the estate
was Garret Lydecker., H_ e gained possession of the area for
a while. At the time of thr Revolution the mill was at the
south end of the road.

The next owner was Abraham Van Riper who built the present
mill, which is north of the house ia 1826. The firm of Van wWinkle
and Park bought both mills ia 1829. Munn and #hitehead were
the next owners. Baldwin bought the property south of the house.
Ihe house and the old stone mill were purchased by John B,
and Issac Worteadyke, their brother Cornelius A. Wortendyke
became the owner in 1676,

Cornelius Wortendyke was largely resposible for bringing
the railroad into town. vwhen he was elected president of
New Jersey Western Railroad in 1867 it merged with two additional
rajlroads and became the New Jersey Midland Railroad. The
town Midland thus received its name. Cornelius Wortendyke also
brought the first telephone lines into town.

This site is significant because the mill was an important
area of commerce which started settlement growth in the vicinity .
Evidence of this can be seen in the turbines and the 18th Century
Mi11 apparatus that remains in the mill, Later owners fostered
urbanization and trade by promoting the railroad and bstterin S
commuaication with bringing the telephone into the town, 2\




Bailey, Rosalie F. , PreRevolutionary Uutch Houses, 1936

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated aecording to the c-iteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is: .

State [ Local @
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. Natio
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Name

1 hereby certify that this property is included in the

Title Commissioner, | Jepartment.

Du Bois, Katherine, "OId Mills of Bergen County", 1955 0\0
Erskine maps: %G(1778), *H(1779), # 36 (1778), # 56B (1779) ~
dalker, A. H. "Atlas of Bergen County", 1876 @
additional information provided by Claire Tholl > and Rosa Livingston. f
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VAN RIPER-WORTENDYKE MILL

by Cornelius Lozier is not known but is indicated on
Erskine map #56 (done in 1779) as being across the road
(now Goffle) and on the opposite side of the brook.
However, evidences of this type (raceways, walls, etc.)
existed until about 15 years ago across the road, but on
the same side of the brook as the present mill, even though
nothing of this type is shown on either the 1861 Corey Wall
map or the 1876 Atlas. The present plant is a complex
structure four stories high on the stream side, centering
around the stone section. The most intriguing part of the
mill is its large (32' long) wheelpit cut out of solid
rock. The water wheel is gone but was used until just
before World War 1 when it was supplanted by a turbine. A
second turbig% replaced the first which is still operable
in case of power failure. Since 1965 the embroidery looms
are usually run by electricity.

The total property, over 7 acres, contains the old
Miller's home, later mill buildings, dams, sluiceways and
ice pond and is located on the northeast side of Wagaraw
Brook at a point crossed by a traditional Indian path
(Wagaraw Trail) and road (Goffle Road), later used by

colonial travelers and the Revol&ﬁtionary army to and from the

Great Falls of the Passaic.
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LOZIER HOUSE

This is a 1% story two-part gable-roofed structure
built of neatly cut and coursed native sgﬂdstone. The

house measures 49'9" across the front,

the main block is 20°

deep and the wing is 26' deep. The basement (only under the
main section) has a dirt floor, a large arched fireplace
support of stone on the NE end and heavy hewn floor beams.
(Flooring may be original but is largely covered with
linoleum.) Roof rafters are trunneled, there are no ridge
pole and early roof shingle lath remains (roof is, how
covered with asphalt shingles). Gable ends are chap—
boarded. Early chimneys, as well as the fireplaces are
gone. The interior seems to have been rearranged in the
first half of the 19th century and it is now a side-by-side
two-family house. In the main section, trapezoidal lintels
top the three fenestrations, the original front door and small
sunburst light over are gone but the original sash and

some glass have survived. (Two front windows are 12 over
8.) The small wing was altered by raising the roof and
inserting a Greek Revival-type -1ze with windows. This
section may date from the mid century and the main
about 1775. However, since no shatfige appears in the stone
work the impression is that it was all done at the same

time.

VAN RIPER-WORTENDYKE MILL

This is the only mill building of its kind in
Bergen County. It was built in 1826 by Abraham Van Riper
‘and measures 32'-6" x 51'-0". The two-story walls are built
of 2'-0" thick native sandstone, neatly cut and coursed
and held together with iron ties. Lintels over openings
are retangular sandstones. Sometime after the Civil War
a third story, with a Mansard roof and dormers, was added
and the building extended to about double its former size.
The wheel pit may also have been enclosed at this time.
The southeastern-most wing may predate the stone section.
It is frame, as are the other additions, but has an earlier
appearance and may be part of Lydecker's Mill which was
described in 1876 as having been "a few rods below the
present stone mill". The site of the original mill built
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Industry

Built in 1826 as a cotton mill this stone structure is one of
the oldest éXtant mills in Bergén County and possibly the only
one “of its kind in the county. Orlglnally powered by a water
wheel, a turbine was installed just prior to World war I. A
second turbine has replaced the first and is still operable
although the present embroidery looms in the mill are operated
by electricity.

The original owners of the mill site were decendents of the
French Le Sueur family. Either Cornelius Lozier (bapt. 1731)
or his father Johannes may have leased land and settled in
this area about 1770, However, it is recorded that Cornelius
bought Lot #10 of the Ramapo tract containing 128.8 acres on
September 1, 1774. He had a house and mill here by 1778 and
both were devised to his son John in 1815. Not long
afterwards the property was sold to Garret A. Lydecker, who
ran a flour mill here and the area became known as Lydecker's
Mills. In 1826 Abraham Van Riper brought the property and
built the stone mill. By 1829 it was in the hands of Van
Winkle and Park who made cotton yarn and warps. 1In the early
1830's Munn and Whitehead took over and continued to produce
cotton yarn and converted Lydecker's Mill into rooms for
making and sizing cotton warps. Mr. Mumm named the area (which
included Ridgewood & Wortendyke) Godwinville, for his relative
and Revolutionary War officer, General Godwin. About 1850

the property was sold to brothers John B. and Isaac
Wortendyke, sons of Abraham, who operated the cotton mills

to the west. (The Wortendyke family had come into the area

in 1796.) Subsequently, the mills passed to brother Cornelius
A. Wortendyke, who was an important and influential local figure
He procured the original charter of the New Jersey and

Western Railroad Company and in 1867 was elected its president.
In 1870 this road was consolidated with the New Jersey, Hudson
and Delaware, and the Sussex Valley Railroad, under the name
of the New Jersey Midland Railway Company (now Susquehanna

and Western), of which Mr. Wortendyke also was president.

The town adopted the name Midland Park from this. He was

also responsible for having the first telephone lines brought
in and was the first to operate a silk mill in Bergen County.
About 1900, the mills were acquired from Robert H. Wortendyke
by Henry J. Wostbrock, who served several times as mayor of the
town. They are now operated as embroidery mills by his two

sons, Walter and Henry J. Wostbrock, Jr. and the latter has
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also served as mayor of Midland Park. The house is
distinguished by a large cast aluminum Bergen County Historical
Society marker and is the oldest house in the municipality.
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INFORMATION

BACKGROUND

———
—

——
r—

V. o a

This unique property of 7.28 acres, old miller's home, later mill
buildings, dams, sluiceways and ice pond is located on the northeast
side of Wagaraw Brook at a point crossed by an important old Indian path
(Wagaraw Trail) .and road.(Goffle Rd.) used by General Washington and his
army to and from the Great Falls of the Passaic. The original owners —~
were descendants of the French Le Sueur family. Either Cornelius Lozier
(bapt. 1731) or his father Johannes may have leased land and settled in
this area about 1770, however, it is recorded that Cornelius bought Lot
#10 of the Ramapo Tract containing 128.8 acres on Sept. 1 1774. He had
a house and mill here by 1778 and both were devised to his son John in
1815. Not long afterwards the property was sold to Garret A. Lydecker,
who ran a flour mill here and the area became known as Lydecker's Mills.
In 1826 abraham Van Riper bought the property and built the stone mill.
By 1829 it was in the hands of Van Winkle and Park who made cotton yarn
and warps. In the early 1830's Munn and Whitehead took over and con-
tinued to produce cotton yarn, and converted Lydecker's Mill into rooms
for making and sizing cotton warps. Mr. Munn named the area (which
included Ridgewood and Wortendyke) Godwinville, for his relative and
Revolutionary War officer, General Godwin. About 1850 the property was
sold to brothers John B. and Isaac Wortendyke, sons of Abraham, who
operated the cotton mills to the west. (The Wortendyke family had come
into the area in 1796.) Subsequently the mills passed to brother
Cornelius A. Wortendyke, who was an important and influentjal man. He
procured the original charter of the New Jersey and Western Railroad
Company and in 1867 was elected its president. 1In 1870 this road was
consolidated with the New Jersey, Hudson and Delaware, and the Sussex
Valley Railroad, under the name of the New Jersey Midland Railway Company
(now Susquehanna and Western), of which Mr. Wortendyke also was president.
The town adopted the name Midland Park from this. He was also respon-
sible for having the first telephone lines brought in and was the first
to operate a silk mill in Bergen County. About 1900, the mills were
acquired from Robert H. Wortendyke by Henry J. Wostbrock, who served
several times as mayor of the town. They are now operated as embroidery
mills by his two sons, Walter and Henry Wostbrock, Jr., and the latter
ha also served as mayor of Midland Park. The house is distinguished by

a large cast aluminum B.C. Hist Soc. marker and is the oldest house in
town.

(The above is quoted directly from the National Register Nomination
Form.)

GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

Block 19, Lat 3A - Midland Park Tax Map
7.15 acres
U.T.M.

18 572 250 4537 200
Paterson, New Jersey




